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          2                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Good afternoon.

          3  My name is Kendall Stewart, and I am the Chair of

          4  the Immigration Committee. I would like to thank my

          5  colleague Larry Seabrook, Chair of the Civil Rights

          6  Committee, for co-chairing this hearing with me on

          7  the critical topic of the Potential Impact of the

          8  Border Security and Immigration Enforcement

          9  Initiatives announced by the Department of Homeland

         10  Security last August, the effect it will have on the

         11  civil rights of New Yorkers, and particularly

         12  immigrant New Yorkers.

         13                 Approximately 3 million immigrants,

         14  including an estimated 500,000 undocumented

         15  immigrants, call New York City "home". In New York

         16  City immigrants comprise 40 percent of the

         17  population and 45 percent of the workforce.

         18  Evidently, any change in immigration policy will

         19  greatly affect the City and the severe consequences

         20  will not only be limited to the City's immigrant

         21  residents.

         22                 Last June, this Committee passed

         23  Resolution No. 842-A, which urged Congress to end

         24  federal raids to deport undocumented immigrants and

         25  institute comprehensive immigration reform that
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          2  protects the fundamental civil liberties of

          3  immigrants and integrates immigrants fully into

          4  American society.

          5                 The Resolution introduced by myself,

          6  the Speaker and Council Member Mark-Viverito, was

          7  adopted by the Council, which sent a message that

          8  immigration reform was long overdue, and aggressive

          9  enforcement of antiquated immigration laws was not

         10  the answer.

         11                 In the wake of the collapse of the

         12  comprehensive immigrant reform effort by the Senate

         13  earlier this summer, the Department of Homeland

         14  Security announced its Border Security and

         15  Immigration Enforcement Plan last August.  The

         16  provisions within this plan put forth by the

         17  Department of Homeland Security will have

         18  detrimental effects beyond the undocumented

         19  immigrant community.

         20                 An article in this week's Crane's New

         21  York Business discussed how the DHS plan could lead

         22  to mass firings and employment-based discrimination.

         23  Although there is a current injunction on the

         24  implementation of this DHS rule, they issue

         25  no-matched letters to employers that inform them of
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          2  alleged discrepancy between employee records and the

          3  Social Security Administration database.  Other

          4  provisions are similarly problematic.

          5                 DHS intends to increase training of

          6  State and local law enforcement officers to address

          7  illegal immigration, which increases the risk of

          8  immigrants being questioned about their status and

          9  how they enter the country by State and local

         10  police.

         11                 Executive Order 41, a citywide

         12  privacy policy concerning immigrant access to City

         13  services, ensures that immigrants, as well as other

         14  New Yorkers, can access City services that they need

         15  and are entitled to receive.  Moreover, the policy

         16  protects areas of confidentiality, such as

         17  immigration status, sexual orientation, status as a

         18  victim of domestic violence, status as a crime

         19  witness, receipt of public assistance and

         20  information in income tax records.

         21                 Nationally, the plan to train

         22  hundreds of State and local law enforcement officers

         23  to enforce immigration laws obscures the distinction

         24  between the responsibilities of Local Law

         25  enforcement and federal immigration agents.
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          2                 Locally, this initiative undermines

          3  the objectives of Executive Order 41, which is

          4  intended to promote secure invaluable interaction

          5  between immigrant communities and public agencies,

          6  including the New York City Police Department.

          7                 At today's hearing we will explore

          8  these issues and hear from advocates and employers

          9  how the planned initiatives by DHS will impact the

         10  City.

         11                 I will now turn over to my co-chair,

         12  Council Member Seabrook, for his comments.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK:  Thank you very

         14  much.  Good afternoon.  My name is Larry Seabrook,

         15  and I'm the Chair of the Civil Rights Committee.  I

         16  would like to thank my co-chair, Dr. Kendall Stewart

         17  of the Immigration Committee, for conducting this

         18  important hearing on maintaining civil rights for

         19  those New Yorkers that may be affected by recent

         20  immigration initiatives.  I would like to applaud

         21  the Speaker, Christine Quinn, as well, for her

         22  efforts to take on issues of comprehensive

         23  immigration reform as they impact the City.

         24                 The City Council has previously

         25  acknowledged the necessity of comprehensive
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          2  immigration reform at the federal level, which

          3  includes implementing protection for the rights of

          4  all workers, the restoration of fundamental due

          5  process in civil rights, and the promotion of full

          6  civil participation and integration of immigrants.

          7                 Work site enforcement, one of the

          8  major components of the new DHS immigration

          9  enforcement initiative, could put all of the

         10  Council's recommendation and hopes for reform at

         11  risk.

         12                 On August 10, 2007, the Department of

         13  Homeland Security, Secretary Michael Chertoff and

         14  Commerce Secretary Carlos Gutierrez, introduced a

         15  series of initiatives aimed at improving border

         16  security and immigration reform through the

         17  administrative process, repeatedly claiming that the

         18  necessity of such changes was a product of the U.S.

         19  Congress' failure to pass a comprehensive

         20  immigration reform bill.

         21                 Their announcement primarily focused

         22  on six subject areas: border security, interior

         23  enforcement, workplace enforcement, improvement to

         24  current guest worker programs, improvements to

         25  current immigration procedures and assimilation.

                                                            9

          1  IMMIGRATION AND CIVIL RIGHTS

          2                 Since the introduction of the

          3  Department of Homeland Security's agenda, advocates

          4  and judges alike, have responded.  The AF of L, CIO,

          5  the American Civil Liberties Union, the National

          6  Immigration Law Center and other groups filed a

          7  lawsuit against the Social Security Administration

          8  and DHS asking for a permanent suspension of the DHS

          9  rule.

         10                 On August 31, 2007, a U.S. District

         11  Judge issued a temporary injunction on the Social

         12  Security Administration's plan to commence issuance

         13  of nearly 150,000 no-match letters requiring

         14  employers to fire employees whose Social Security

         15  numbers did not match those in their records.  With

         16  hearings set to begin in October, the injunction on

         17  DHS's plans is likely to remain intact until the

         18  beginning of 2008.

         19                 While the injunction delays the

         20  Administration's preparation, it does not completely

         21  eradicate them, providing the City Council with an

         22  opportunity to truly evaluate the effects that DHS

         23  proposal can have on New York City residents.

         24                 The Committees expect to learn the

         25  extent of this problem in New York City and how it
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          2  can be effectively addressed.

          3                 Again, I would like to thank my

          4  co-chair for holding this hearing, and I look

          5  forward to today's testimony on this critical topic.

          6                 Before we commence with this

          7  testimony, I'd like to welcome my colleagues.  We

          8  have Council Member Mike Nelson from Brooklyn, and

          9  we have Councilwoman Mark-Viverito from the Bronx

         10  and Manhattan, and we have Dr. Eugene, who is here

         11  from Brooklyn, Council Member Eugene from Brooklyn,

         12  who is here as well.  So we have a number of people

         13  who will be testifying, and I'm going to turn it

         14  back over to Dr. Stewart.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Well, first of

         16  all, I want to let folks know that I have with us

         17  today Natasha, who is our new counsel, also to the

         18  Civil Rights and Immigration Committee.  We have

         19  also a Policy Analyst, Damien, and as usual, we have

         20  our good friend here, Jennine, who works with the

         21  Immigration Committee.

         22                 Well, at this time we'd like to call

         23  our first witness.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK:  That's a

         25  panel.  That would be E. Charles Hunt and Jeffrey
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          2  Margolis.  We do have a lot of speakers, so we are

          3  going to kind of keep somewhat of a time limit.

          4  We're not going to restrict you to the three

          5  minutes, but we're going to kind of give you a sense

          6  of when it's time to wrap it up.

          7                 MR. HUNT:  Good afternoon.  My name

          8  is Chuck Hunt, and I'm the Executive Vice-President

          9  of the New York State Restaurant Association.  I

         10  wish to thank the Committee Chairs and members of

         11  the Committee who are present for this opportunity

         12  to speak to you about the impact of recent federal

         13  border security and immigration enforcement

         14  initiatives.

         15                 NYSRA is a not-for-profit trade

         16  association representing the food service and

         17  hospitality industry in New York State.  We are an

         18  affiliate of the National Restaurant Association,

         19  headquartered in Washington, D.C.  The NRA, not to

         20  be confused with another organization with similar

         21  initials but dissimilar objectives, the NRA, for the

         22  past six years, has worked with the essential worker

         23  immigration coalition, along with 41 other

         24  organizations representing a myriad of industries,

         25  all of which play an important part in the economy
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          2  and life blood of our nation.

          3                 Also, the NRA co-chairs the National

          4  Immigration Forum, a pro-immigration group with

          5  members from business, labor, faith-based groups and

          6  national and local immigrant advocacy organizations.

          7                 Usually when I speak before the

          8  Council and its Committees, my remarks are confined

          9  to restaurant, food service and night life matters

         10  here in New York City.  Most certainly, New York

         11  City with its diverse, multi- ethnic population

         12  where 48 percent of its workforce is foreign- born,

         13  sits at the forefront of cities and regions that

         14  will be severely impacted by the recent actions of

         15  the Department of Homeland Security and the Social

         16  Security Administration.

         17                 However, the subject of today's

         18  hearing is by no means just a restaurant issue or

         19  just a New York City issue.  This subject has

         20  national scope.

         21                 As you've heard, under the

         22  regulations, 140,000 new no- match letters were to

         23  have been mailed out requiring employers to notify

         24  certain employees of a discrepancy in Social

         25  Security's records where the names didn't match the
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          2  numbers.  Following notification, the employees

          3  would then be required to resolve the situation

          4  within 90 days.  If the employees could not resolve

          5  the problem, the employer would then be forced to

          6  terminate the employee or face civil and criminal

          7  sanctions.

          8                 The DHS regulations are complex and

          9  confusing. Frankly, they're but a band- aid approach

         10  to a much larger problem. They were issued under

         11  mounting public pressure to crack down on

         12  undocumented workers and their employers after the

         13  United States Congress failed to enact comprehensive

         14  immigration reform earlier this year.

         15                 Thankfully, as we have heard last

         16  month, a federal district court in California put on

         17  hold the no- match regulations. However, the relief

         18  is temporary.

         19                 I won't go into the complex details

         20  of the unfairness and unworkability of the

         21  regulations other than to mention that the

         22  regulations would foster anti- immigrant

         23  discrimination and that many lawful U.S. citizens

         24  and those legally allowed to work in our country

         25  could also be harmed due to the poor quality of the
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          2  Social Security Administration's database.

          3                 Food service and many other labor

          4  intensive industries that contribute billions of

          5  dollars to our city and nation's economies can be

          6  crippled by these unrealistic regulations.  All

          7  they're really doing is eliminating a sizeable

          8  portion of the workforce without providing any legal

          9  way to hire foreign-born workers that do jobs that

         10  Americans are no longer taking.

         11                 Targeting employers is not the answer

         12  to providing border security.  There is a great need

         13  for comprehensive immigration reform, which includes

         14  an employee verification system that is workable for

         15  both small and large businesses.  In the absence of

         16  federal action, we face an increase in enforcement

         17  pressure on the business at the federal, state and

         18  local level.

         19                 Let me emphatically state that the

         20  employers of the food service and hospitality

         21  industries join with employers from all industries

         22  in the following:

         23                 Immigration reform must include

         24  stronger borders. We support the necessity of the

         25  United States to control its borders and ensure
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          2  legal and orderly immigration.

          3                 Immigration reform must include a

          4  workable guest worker program.  Only a realistic and

          5  legal procedure that allows American employers to

          6  hire foreign workers, can reduce the pressure

          7  illegal immigration puts on our borders and our

          8  national resources.

          9                 A flexible, realistic guest worker

         10  program will ensure that American businesses

         11  continue to grow and maintain their competitive

         12  advantage in our global economy.

         13                 Immigration reform must include a

         14  path to legal work status and eventual citizenship

         15  for immigrants already living in the United States

         16  and here in New York City.  Despite efforts by

         17  opponents of reform to denigrate such a process by

         18  labeling it amnesty, American citizens and American

         19  businesses recognize that the immigrants among us

         20  are already part of our nation.

         21                 We need a realistic solution, one

         22  that will draw millions of workers out of the

         23  shadows and restore the rule of law to our system.

         24  Deporting millions of workers and families is simply

         25  not realistic.
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          2                 Our lawmakers in Washington should be

          3  ashamed of themselves for failing to act on

          4  comprehensive immigration reform. They have

          5  politicized a human and economic issue that deserves

          6  immediate, pragmatic and thoughtful consideration,

          7  followed by fair and careful enactment and

          8  enforcement of sensible and workable laws and

          9  regulations.

         10                 Anything that the New York City

         11  Council and members of these Committees can do to

         12  further these goals and accelerate the achievement

         13  of them should and must be done.  Thank you.

         14                 MR. MARGOLIS:  Good afternoon.  I'm

         15  Jeffrey Margolis from the Margolis law firm where

         16  we've been practicing immigration law for the last

         17  35 years.  I want to thank the Chairpersons and the

         18  Committee Members for inviting me to testify this

         19  afternoon.

         20                 When Jennine Ventura called me a few

         21  days ago and asked if I could appear at this

         22  session, I said, well, it's such short notice, I may

         23  not have time to prepare a comprehensive, highly

         24  annotated, exhaustively researched statement on the

         25  law, et cetera, but by her silence, I got the
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          2  distinct impression that she and the Committees

          3  Members would welcome any circumstances that would

          4  force a lawyer to keep it short and to the point.

          5                 I do have time for one quick

          6  anecdote, and before I start, may I compliment Chuck

          7  Hunt for his very eloquent and succinct exposition

          8  of the subject.  We may be covering some of the same

          9  ground.  I represent hotels and restaurants, so I

         10  have a particular niche and interest in the topic

         11  today, and again, grateful for a chance to share my

         12  thoughts, and Chuck has done a tremendous job as the

         13  leader of the restaurant association in expressing

         14  the industry's point of view.  This is non-

         15  billable.

         16                 One quick anecdote.  I know we're

         17  limited on time, but some years ago, the Daughters

         18  of the American Revolution, the DAR, that very

         19  august group, had invited someone to speak as a

         20  keynote speaker and had not vetted that person too

         21  carefully because, as he stood up and looked over a

         22  sea of mainly elderly, white, blue- grey haired

         23  ladies, he started to talk and thanked the official

         24  who introduced him and then said, good afternoon,

         25  fellow immigrants.
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          2                 So the bottom line is, unless you're

          3  a Native American Indian, the whole immigration

          4  issue is a question of when and how you got here, be

          5  it the Mayflower or more recently a jumbo jet out of

          6  Cali, Columbia.  We are indeed a nation of

          7  immigrants.

          8                 Having practiced in this area for so

          9  many years, I guess I'm somewhat qualified to give

         10  an insight, and to say the present system is

         11  dysfunctional and does not work, is obvious to all

         12  who have taken even cursory look.  This is

         13  symbolized by 12 million undocumented people

         14  estimated to be stranded now in illegal limbo.

         15  There was indeed a glimmer of hope this past spring

         16  when the Bush initiative for comprehensive

         17  immigration reform, a plan which would have created

         18  a path for legalization, and also, and this was of

         19  special interest to my clients in the hotel and

         20  restaurant business, created a viable guest worker

         21  policy to feed those industries, industries such as

         22  agriculture, hospitality, manufacturing, which must

         23  have adequate pools of essential lower level

         24  workers.

         25                 As you know, the initiative went down
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          2  very hard, caught in a crossfire of ugly charges and

          3  counter- charges, as played out in Congress and the

          4  press by the talking heads of television and radio

          5  and by just plain folk at corner coffee shops and

          6  bodegas across the country.  The outlook for

          7  reviving this legislation is considered quite

          8  remote.

          9                 So the present antiquated,

         10  inadequate, broken, get the message, system will

         11  remain in place for some time.  Meanwhile, the

         12  Administration, through the Department of Homeland

         13  Security, has decided to take a pro- enforcement

         14  stance, and that initiative, announced with very

         15  fanfare this past August, as Mr. Seabrook informed

         16  us, includes action on several fronts.

         17                 These are called reforms, and I think

         18  that's a mislabeling if there ever was one.  But

         19  increasing civil fines for employers who knowingly

         20  employ undocumented aliens, expanding criminal

         21  investigations against employers, decreasing the

         22  number of work authorization documents acceptable

         23  for this I- 9, which is an immigration service

         24  eligibility form, and today's topic, no- match

         25  letters, which Chuck Hunt explained a bit before.
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          2  There's also attached to my testimony a little

          3  newsletter on the subject.

          4                 Again, it's a no- match between a

          5  name and a Social Security number, and I'm going to

          6  skip some of the printed testimony.  But some of

          7  these statistics are so interesting.  The Social

          8  Security Administration itself has said it has

          9  upwards of 17 million inaccurate records, and the

         10  suggested figures that there are 8.7 million workers

         11  now using no- match Social Security numbers.       So

         12  the triggering of an investigation by the receipt of

         13  one of these 140,000 no- match letters, which Social

         14  Security plans to send out to employers, could start

         15  a really desperate and really a frenzied search for

         16  some legal respite, which many workers won't find.

         17  The employer then has 90 days within which to vet

         18  the Social Security status of the person, and the

         19  bottom line is, if at the end of those 90 days,

         20  there is no safe harbor for the employer, then the

         21  employee has to be fired.

         22                 There's a lot of legal stuff involved

         23  here about constructive knowledge, meaning if you

         24  employ somebody whose number does not match their

         25  name, you're construed, it's implied that you know
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          2  you've got an illegal worker, and that can trigger

          3  certain penalties under the immigration law, ranging

          4  from a $250 fine to six months imprisonment if

          5  there's a pattern or practice of hiring undocumented

          6  people.

          7                 The impact of the no- match

          8  initiative again will be felt especially by

          9  industries employing essential workers, such as

         10  hospitality and manufacturing, construction,

         11  healthcare and food processing.

         12                 I want to take one minute since I

         13  mainly work with employers to talk about quote,

         14  unquote legal immigration, bringing over the best

         15  and brightest foreign workers to the United States.

         16  You may have heard there was a program called the H-

         17  1B, professional level visa, 65,000 visas available

         18  each year.  In one day, the Immigration Service

         19  received 150,000 applications for these visas, so

         20  within one day the entire year's allotment was used

         21  up, and that's just unworkable and not good for our

         22  country and not good for our economy.

         23                 The Department of Homeland Security

         24  Secretary Chertoff has loudly declared that

         25  employers of illegal aliens had better watch out
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          2  because the government is going to come down on

          3  these employers and I quote, like a ton of bricks.

          4                 Raids against high profile companies

          5  will increase. Discrimination against Hispanic

          6  Americans will be a natural result as employers

          7  become more skittish about hiring people who sound

          8  and look different.

          9                 Obviously, all laws, including

         10  immigration laws, are meant to be enforced.  We must

         11  keep terrorists of the country, and some lesser

         12  known initiatives such as Operation Community

         13  Shield, designed to arrest and remove foreign gang

         14  members, are worthy of our praise.

         15                 But as I see it, the only real

         16  solution is comprehensive immigration reform.  Yes,

         17  the A word, amnesty, giving a path to U.S.

         18  citizenship for those undocumented foreigners

         19  presently in the United States, together with a

         20  meaningful guest worker program.

         21                 Lastly, the funding of ambitious aid

         22  programs to disadvantaged countries, so that the

         23  incentive to come to the United States at any cost,

         24  in some cases one's life, will be diminished.

         25                 Thank you for your time and the
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          2  opportunity to present my views.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK:  I thank both

          4  of you very much, and it's certainly important.  The

          5  Council just returned from Washington with a

          6  discussion around this same issue with immigration

          7  with Senator Schumer and other members of Congress

          8  about what needs to be done.  So in terms of what is

          9  really the effect of the industries in which you all

         10  are involved in of this bill?  What would be the

         11  effects of this?

         12                 MR. HUNT:  Well, certainly we must

         13  acknowledge the fact that even though restaurant

         14  operators are not supposed to hire people who aren't

         15  properly documented to work, that for sure there are

         16  a great many out there.  New York City has 26,000

         17  food service establishments.  There's only seven

         18  states that have more food service establishments

         19  than just what we have here in the five boroughs of

         20  New York City.  You can imagine the number of

         21  employees that would be affected, and I take great

         22  issue with the fact that- I've spent my life in the

         23  restaurant industry.  I haven't always been sitting

         24  a desk.  I've owned restaurants.  I've run

         25  restaurants, and I've worked beside people that fall
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          2  into this category, and they're not criminals,

          3  they're not terrorists. They're hard working people

          4  with families, and they have come here to make a

          5  better life for themselves.  What's going to happen

          6  is that many of them are going to be forced back

          7  into the shadows, and who knows what's going to

          8  happen in terms of an increase in the welfare rolls,

          9  a tragedy economically.  We happen to be the largest

         10  private employer in the City.  That's somewhat

         11  questionable depending upon what your definition is,

         12  but you can imagine how many people are going to be,

         13  and how many businesses are going to be affected.

         14                 We have a labor intensive business

         15  that requires people, and without those people,

         16  there would be a lot of, particularly the small mom

         17  and pop restaurants that depend upon a few

         18  employees.  If they lose those employees, they won't

         19  be able to operate.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK:  So what would

         21  you recommend as a means of some of the policy

         22  changes that you think that could be most effective

         23  in dealing with this situation?

         24                 MR. HUNT:  Well, first of all, it's

         25  got to be done nationwide.  I mean, unfortunately,
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          2  we are preempted from doing it just here in New York

          3  City because I think we have an audience here that

          4  really appreciates the problem and the contributions

          5  that we get from these folks that are undocumented.

          6  It's a terrible thing to think about.  I don't know

          7  what the answer is.

          8                 There have the McCain Kennedy bill

          9  that was passed by the U.S. Senate and ignored by

         10  the Congress in general, had some provisions in it

         11  that would allow these people to go through a

         12  process and achieve legal status, and in many cases

         13  eventually find a pathway to citizenship.  This is

         14  what's got to happen.  How we're going to get it

         15  done, I don't know.

         16                 I grew up in upstate New York, and I

         17  have some classmates that don't understand this

         18  issue, that send me e- mails. It's scary the things

         19  I receive.  You know, we can't ignore the fact that

         20  these people are necessary and they're good people.

         21  We've got to provide some way for them to become

         22  legal.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Mr. Hunt, could

         24  you list the, or tell us the industries that are

         25  mostly affected by dealings of the Homeland
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          2  Security.  Can you tell us?  We know restaurants is

          3  one of the industries.  What are the other

          4  industries that are affected by this?

          5                 MR. HUNT:  Agriculture, landscaping,

          6  healthcare, manufacturing.  Any industry that

          7  employs a lot of people, food processing.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  So in other

          9  words, what you're saying, it's really the life

         10  blood of New York City.

         11                 MR. HUNT:  The life blood of this

         12  country, and most certainly New York obviously.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK:  I think, would

         14  your industry and others be in support of the

         15  Council, I guess, passing a resolution urging the

         16  Congress to move on this act of what has to take

         17  place.

         18                 MR. HUNT:  We spoke in favor of the

         19  resolution that was passed last year, and certainly

         20  we would be vigorously in support of that.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK:  Just a quick

         22  question as it relates to, because the penalties in

         23  some of the things as it relates to those in the

         24  industry in other areas with your policy of hiring

         25  and the response from Homeland Security that we're
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          2  going to come down on these people with a ton of

          3  bricks.  Could you talk a little bit about that?

          4                 MR. MARGOLIS:  Let's take the no-

          5  match letters, for example.  These letters have been

          6  sent out for a few years now, but there was no

          7  enforcement provision.  Even if the employer said,

          8  I'm just tossing that letter in the garbage can,

          9  Social Security had no way of penalizing the

         10  employer.  Now, with Department of Homeland Security

         11  lining up with the Social Security Administration,

         12  and many in the SSA, and those who are supporters of

         13  Social Security, say this is totally inappropriate.

         14  Social Security was never meant to be used as a

         15  weapon against anyone.  It's a benefits program. But

         16  now that it's happening, an employer who gets that

         17  letter can no longer ignore it, and there's a series

         18  of escalating penalties from fines up to

         19  imprisonment that can be imposed for, in effect,

         20  knowingly continuing to employ people who have these

         21  letters.

         22                 So once you put enforcement behind

         23  any proposal like this, employers are operating at

         24  risk.

         25                 Some say, look, in 1986 they passed
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          2  something called ERCA, the Employment Reform Control

          3  Act. And there was a trade off in 1986.  I don't

          4  know if you recall.  They illegalized a number of

          5  people.  There was an amnesty, and to get that

          6  through Congress, there had to be a trade off, so

          7  for the first time in U.S. history, 1986, employment

          8  of unauthorized or undocumented people was made

          9  illegal.

         10                 This is 21 years later.  Maybe in 21

         11  years there have been a few hundred actions by the

         12  government against employers, so everyone winked at

         13  that ERCA law.  They said, yes, it's there, and

         14  we're going to fill out a form, but if somebody

         15  shows us what looks like a real Social Security card

         16  or some other identity, we're not going to go beyond

         17  that.  It looks okay.  We're going to accept it, and

         18  everyone accepted it, and it became a normal way of

         19  doing business.

         20                 Now what we're looking at is the

         21  normal way of doing business may no longer be.  You

         22  may be doing that at great risk both in terms of

         23  fines and possibly penalties.  I mainly work with

         24  employers.  They say, Jeff, I'm not going to have my

         25  human resource person and my executive vice-
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          2  president be charged in a criminal indictment.  What

          3  are we going to do?

          4                 And larger, high- profile employers,

          5  like the restaurant people, they're the ones that

          6  the government is going to go after to allegedly set

          7  an example for the smaller fish.

          8                 So when Chuck Hunt talks about how

          9  meaningful this could be for his people, as legal

         10  counsel to members of that association I say, I'm

         11  seconding that, and I think we really have to fight

         12  vigorously, the no- match program, some of these

         13  other misguided programs.  They're all coming in as

         14  a function of a vacuum created by the lack of

         15  congressional action on comprehensive reform, which

         16  will again lead to illegalization.

         17                 I'll just mention in passing, some

         18  counties and cities have passed their own

         19  immigration laws.  You may have been hearing about

         20  this.  Where they're saying anyone who employs

         21  someone illegally, anyone who rents an apartment to

         22  persons who are not documented, could be subject to

         23  arrest and fine.

         24                 The good news is, so far when there's

         25  been a court test of these kinds of local laws, the

                                                            30

          1  IMMIGRATION AND CIVIL RIGHTS

          2  laws have been stricken because the federal

          3  government is supposed to be the only entity making

          4  laws relating to immigration.

          5                 But it's out there, and when you talk

          6  about the City Council passing some kind of a

          7  declaration in favor of reform and against these

          8  awful measures, I think that's a voice that has to

          9  be heard to counteract the very conservative,

         10  xenophobic groups that are so active and so vocal.

         11  Sorry for taking so long, but.

         12                 MR. HUNT:  If I may, I'd just like to

         13  add something that perhaps I find interesting.  You

         14  know, there's a myth that people in the restaurant

         15  industry in order to avoid problems like this just

         16  pay their employees in cash, no withholding, no

         17  nothing. That's a myth.  I'm sure it exists to some

         18  extent, very small, but the great majority, all

         19  these people are paying taxes, and they're also

         20  paying into the Social Security Administration.

         21  These numbers that they have that don't match their

         22  name means that that money that they've put in

         23  there, they'll never get any credit for that. That

         24  goes right straight into the Social Security fund,

         25  which people with white hair like myself are
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          2  collecting.  They're shooting themselves in the

          3  foot.  By doing this, they're going to eliminate

          4  that money coming in.

          5                 MR. MARGOLIS:  Chuck, did you hear

          6  that it's upwards of $500 billion in these no-

          7  match, remittances that are made by no match people,

          8  $500 billion.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  I wanted  you

         10  to comment on that, the fact that you have 10

         11  million no- match, and what does the effect on the

         12  Social Security intake if all those no- match people

         13  were to be eliminated?  If you could comment on

         14  that.  Because to me it's like we are very reactive

         15  instead of being proactive.  In other words, we wait

         16  until we do something and look for a problem, than

         17  trying to solve the problem without looking before

         18  that it's going to be a problem based on what we're

         19  doing now, and we should be looking for solutions.

         20  So could you comment on that?

         21                 MR. MARGOLIS:  I wouldn't be

         22  surprised, I'm just echoing what Chuck Hunt just

         23  said, if executives at the Social Security

         24  Administration are not quite disturbed about what's

         25  going to happen when these funds get cut off because
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          2  they've already spent a lot of this money, as you

          3  know and I know.  So I can't give any really

          4  specific details, but I think it's a very

          5  interesting concomitant to what's happening here.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  We have been

          7  joined by Council Member Mealy from East New York,

          8  Bronxville and part of East New York.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK:  So she's from

         10  Brooklyn.  I think it's important, just to highlight

         11  the impact, because you talked about just two major

         12  entities in this state and in this City, the

         13  restaurant industry and farming, and they go hand in

         14  hand.  What would you say would be the impact if

         15  this actually became law and was upheld?

         16                 MR. HUNT:  Actually, in terms of

         17  agriculture, it's actually happening.  I had

         18  something across my desk this morning that said the

         19  farmers in upstate New York are finding it difficult

         20  to harvest their crops, and some of them are

         21  figuring that next year they won't be able to plant

         22  the crops.  Now what's going to do to food prices?

         23                 MR. MARGOLIS:  May I add, I read an

         24  article about a farmer who was moving his farm to

         25  Mexico.  It was going to much easier for him to
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          2  operate out of Mexico than try to bring help here.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK:  So the tax

          4  dollars --

          5                 MR. MARGOLIS:  I thought that was

          6  about as dramatic as it gets.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK:  No question.

          8                 MR. HUNT:  About as scary as it gets

          9  too.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK:  Council Member

         11  Nelson?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you.

         13  Approximately what percentage of your industry is

         14  made up of immigrant workers, approximately?

         15                 MR. HUNT:  All of us, including, I

         16  mean if you go back far enough, all of us.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Presently.

         18                 MR. HUNT:  It's hard to say because

         19  obviously one of the questions, we don't ask people

         20  what their race is.  We don't ask people what their

         21  sexual preferences are.  There are laws against

         22  that, so perhaps the U.S. Census Bureau that does

         23  ask those questions may have a better answer than I

         24  do, but I don't know. But I can tell there's a great

         25  many of the, as I mentioned in my testimony, 48
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          2  percent of the workers in New York City, the

          3  statistics that I got just yesterday, 48 percent of

          4  them are foreign- born.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  And there's

          6  no way to factor out those who are undocumented

          7  then?  Because it falls in the same parallel.

          8                 MR. HUNT:  No.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  What

         10  percentage of the restaurant industry would be

         11  affected by the changes, as far as businesses of 10

         12  or more employees?

         13                 MR. HUNT:  Well, it doesn't matter.

         14  I would be willing to say that 100 percent of all

         15  the food service operations, or 99.6 whatever, have

         16  someone on their staff who is not a native citizen

         17  of the U.S.  Now many of them have achieved legal

         18  status, but a great many of them have not.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  And the

         20  employee verification program would be a good way to

         21  start dealing with this issue?

         22                 MR. HUNT:  Well, the way it works

         23  now, you interview someone, you tell them you'd like

         24  them to be hired, they accept the job, and at that

         25  point and not until, you hand them a form called a
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          2  99, that Jeff mentioned, that they have to fill out

          3  and they have to provide documents.  There's several

          4  ways they can do it, but they have to provide

          5  documents indicating whether or not they are legal

          6  to work in this country.

          7                 One of the biggest problems for us, I

          8  mean, in good faith, all restaurants do this, but if

          9  they're shown a document that appears to be

         10  authentic and it isn't, how do we tell?  I mean,

         11  with the technology, I mean, there are kids sitting

         12  in their dorm rooms that are making driver's

         13  licenses so that they can go out and drink alcohol.

         14  You can imagine the same thing is true with

         15  documents that would prove the eligibility to work.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Sure, unless

         17  they went to a fingerprinting.  Well, thank you, Mr.

         18  Hunt, Mr. Margolis.  Mr. Chair?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK:  Thank you very

         20  much for the testimony, certainly enlightening.  The

         21  next witness, Jose Maldonado.

         22                 MR. MALDONADO:  The water's good.  I

         23  was looking for a fountain of water somewhere.  I

         24  had no water anywhere, so even this water.  Good

         25  afternoon, everybody.

                                                            36

          1  IMMIGRATION AND CIVIL RIGHTS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK:  Good

          3  afternoon.

          4                 MR. MALDONADO:  My name is Jose

          5  Maldonado.  I'm the Secretary- Treasurer of Unite

          6  Here Local 100.  It is a pleasure being here to talk

          7  about this extremely important issue to all of us,

          8  especially it touches really personal and our union

          9  and in our communities because working in the food

         10  service industry is something like you were saying,

         11  there was a percentage like what percentage of food

         12  service workers are immigrants, and somebody said

         13  all, which is probably right.

         14                 But if you look at most of the

         15  restaurants, and you walk into restaurants, you can

         16  see in most restaurants you can say 70 percent of

         17  the workers are immigrants in one form or another,

         18  either from South America, Central America or

         19  European countries. If you look at the back of the

         20  houses, it's mostly immigrants, right, and mostly

         21  Latinos.  In the front of the houses it's a little

         22  different.

         23                 So that percentage is really high.  I

         24  wasn't supposed to answer that question, but I

         25  thought I'd talk a little bit about that.

                                                            37

          1  IMMIGRATION AND CIVIL RIGHTS

          2                 I'm prepared to read a statement

          3  today that you will have, but I just want to say,

          4  Aramark.  I want to talk a little bit about Aramark

          5  as a company.  They're a multi- billion dollar

          6  corporation, international.  They recently

          7  implemented these rules before they were law or

          8  before there was any clarification.  I'm going to

          9  talk a little bit about that in my statement.  They

         10  fired a lot, or they called suspended, definitely

         11  suspended, a lot of our members.  We were affected

         12  by the Meadowlands and Aramark about 60 workers

         13  there and in New York City about 17, but that number

         14  changed.  Some people went back to work, put most of

         15  the people out.  We know that it was not because

         16  they were undocumented.  It was because of the

         17  Social Security no- match letter, and there's lots

         18  of reasons why a person could have them, and I'm

         19  going to address that in my statement.

         20                 So Aramark is taking steps.  It's

         21  like you have to put a stop sign in a place because

         22  it's dangerous but they start giving tickets without

         23  the stop sign being there, so they're a horrible

         24  company, and we don't agree with that.

         25                 So the point of all this is that the
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          2  City Council should bring Aramark here and ask them

          3  questions why they are firing workers and dismissing

          4  workers, hundreds of workers that have been working

          5  for their company for 17 years, 18 years, 20 years,

          6  without giving them a fair process, without knowing

          7  about these, until the dust settles like we say.

          8                 So I just wanted to say that before

          9  we go into any reading or statements because once

         10  you start reading statements, some people start

         11  traveling, I'm going to do, are the Yankees going to

         12  win tonight, so you know how that goes.  And, yes,

         13  the Yankees are off today, but tomorrow they will

         14  win.  You can put that on the record.  One and a

         15  half games.  Hopefully on the City Council there's a

         16  lot of Yankee fans, as well as Mets.  Yankees and

         17  Mets are both our -- I'm a Yankee fan, but we

         18  represent both Yankees and Mets, so we're there in

         19  both places.

         20                 I'm going to talk a little bit about

         21  International Union.  International Union represents

         22  about 450,000 workers internationally, and 120,000

         23  of those live in New York City.  The members of our

         24  union work together for justice in the workplace and

         25  in our communities.  Together, our members are
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          2  building better jobs through organizing and

          3  collective bargaining.  Because of the collective

          4  bargaining, our members have, of course, higher

          5  paying jobs, benefits and retirement plans that

          6  doesn't cost the City anything.

          7                 Our members are incredibly diverse,

          8  like we said before, because in restaurants in and

          9  laundries and in food service, it's mostly

         10  immigrants.  The majority of our members are women,

         11  and lots of immigrants are African Americans and

         12  other ethnic minorities.

         13                 Our members help keep this City

         14  moving.  They work in laundries, hotels,

         15  restaurants, casinos and other food service, apparel

         16  and textile facilities, also in airports and

         17  concessions around the state.

         18                 Despite the increasingly anti- union

         19  sentiment in the workplace, our members in our union

         20  from all over the world stand united for freedom to

         21  choose a union and to give families a chance of

         22  decent quality of life that everyone deserves in

         23  America.            Our union is committed to

         24  unifying communities throughout economic justice.

         25  In the last year the union has pursued an aggressive
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          2  organizing agenda dedicated to organizing workers in

          3  the food service sector.  Despite those efforts, on

          4  August 15, 2007, 73 workers were suspended at

          5  Meadowlands, which Aramark represents.  Some of them

          6  have returned to work and others remain suspended.

          7  Six workers remain suspended from New York City and

          8  Aramark corporate dining facilities like Citigroup

          9  in Long Island City, Goldman Sachs, Viacom and JP

         10  Morgan, where Aramark is the operator of the food

         11  service operator.

         12                 Many of these suspensions were issued

         13  prior to the implementation of the new Department of

         14  Homeland Security rule that requires employers to

         15  resolve Social Security no- match discrepancies

         16  within 90 days.  Those suspensions that were issued

         17  by Aramark were based on Social Security no- match

         18  letters from 2006 issued prior to the implementation

         19  of the new rule.  These actions are also taking

         20  place during the height of our efforts to organize

         21  this company in different parts of the U.S. and New

         22  York City.

         23                 As you know, there are an unlimited

         24  number of reasons why the Social Security

         25  Administration have no- match letters, many of which
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          2  may have nothing to do with immigration status.  The

          3  Social Security Administration is prone to error,

          4  like every other agency.  It could be because you

          5  got married, which we all do once in awhile,

          6  divorce, which there's a lot of that, or you change

          7  your name or duplicate surnames, and so on.  There's

          8  a number of reasons, or simple clerical errors of

          9  any administration or accounting department.

         10                 The impact of these regulations is

         11  endless and will likely drive many of our workers

         12  into the underground economy, leaving them

         13  vulnerable to many civil and workplace violations

         14  that will be unseen by those federal, state and city

         15  departments that seek to protect these workers by

         16  enforcing these laws, like overtime laws, health and

         17  safety regulations and workplace discrimination

         18  rules.

         19                 This new rule also empowers bad

         20  employers and threatens workers on the job and

         21  discourages organizing efforts by holding Social

         22  Security no- match letters against them as a means

         23  for keeping them quiet as their rights are being

         24  violated.

         25                 It is unclear how many workers in our
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          2  union will be impacted by this rule.  The Social

          3  Security Administration has some 8 to 11 million

          4  discrepancies in their database, many of which will

          5  impact documented workers.  What is clear is that

          6  all workers, regardless of immigration status, stand

          7  to be affected by this effort.

          8                 New York City is a primary engine of

          9  the global economy, the capital of the world.  The

         10  most successful investment banks and finance

         11  institutions make their home on Wall Street, media

         12  and publishing companies in Times Square, law firms

         13  and other top corporations throughout Manhattan.

         14  The food service, laundry and hotel, restaurant and

         15  garment production workers of these corporations

         16  keep the City moving.  Should the Social Security

         17  Administration descend upon these industries,

         18  organized or unorganized, then the impact for these

         19  services along will be devastating.

         20                 We ask the City Council to stand with

         21  the workers that have been suspended without being

         22  given a chance to resolve their status and with

         23  those that may be unjustly suspended in the future

         24  for exercising the very rights our union members

         25  worked hard to achieve.  Workers should be allowed
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          2  to continue to work until the courts have issued a

          3  final decision on these matters.

          4                 And companies like Aramark should be

          5  held accountable for their actions.  We urge the

          6  City Council to call on Aramark and question them

          7  about their bad behavior.

          8                 Immigrant workers add value to this

          9  City in both the public and private sectors.

         10  Despite the incredible prosperity generated in the

         11  high rise office buildings in our City, many New

         12  York City service workers do not always share these

         13  gains. However, workers at Aramark should not be

         14  subject to any number of exploitations while the

         15  courts are deciding whether the Department of

         16  Homeland Security has overstepped their authority.

         17                 We urge the New York City Council to

         18  pass a resolution of non- discrimination as a

         19  demonstration of solidarity that seeks to discourage

         20  bad employers from intimidation, harassment,

         21  underpaying immigrant and non- immigrant workers.

         22  Our communities are living in fear and confusion

         23  caused by this rule. They need to hear from you

         24  during these uncertain times.  Thank you very much.

         25  God bless you all, and God bless America.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK:  Thank you very

          3  much, Mr. Maldonado.  It is our hope that one of the

          4  fundamental principles of this country is the level

          5  of due process and that hopefully that this company

          6  would adhere to that since there was a restraining

          7  order and so that just having people in.

          8                 I will say that we will be putting

          9  together a resolution and working with you, my

         10  staff, Cleveland Beckett (phonetic), and hopefully I

         11  can get the members of this Committee to join in on

         12  adding on with a resolution that we will be able to

         13  do that and get other Council members so that we

         14  will make sure that that's in place so you'll be

         15  working with him to have that done.

         16                 MR. MALDONADO:  Thank you very much.

         17  I appreciate your time.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK:  Okay, thank

         19  you.

         20                 MR. MALDONADO:  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK:  Any questions,

         22  anybody?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  I don't have a

         24  question but I just want to make a comment.  As an

         25  immigrant myself, and all of us who are immigrants,
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          2  I believe that we all come to the United States for

          3  the same reason, to look some of us for freedom, for

          4  opportunities for ourself, for our children, and the

          5  door has been opened for us.  We have to keep the

          6  door open for the others that will come after us.  I

          7  believe that I will support any action of the City

          8  Council Members, and I think this is the right thing

          9  to do, to support whatever you are doing and also to

         10  ask the government to make sure that they leave the

         11  door open for those who have to come after us.

         12                 MR. MALDONADO:  Thank you very much.

         13  Thank you for your time.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK:  Thank you.

         15  The next panel is Angela Lee and Luz Tavarez

         16  Salazar.

         17                 MS. LEE:  Good afternoon.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK:  Good

         19  afternoon.

         20                 MS. LEE:  I'd like to thank the

         21  members of the Civil Rights Committee and

         22  Immigration Committee for holding this important

         23  hearing, in particular Committee Chair Seabrook and

         24  Stewart for inviting us to testify on the impact of

         25  federal border security and immigration enforcement
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          2  initiatives on civil rights.

          3                 My name is Angela Lee, and I'm the

          4  Program Associate for the Immigration Advocacy at

          5  the New York Immigration Coalition. The NYIC is a

          6  statewide umbrella or policy and advocacy

          7  organization for over 200 member organizations

          8  throughout New York State that promotes justice and

          9  opportunities for immigrants and refugees.

         10                 In Congress and in localities around

         11  the country, the debate around immigration has been

         12  emotional and complex.  Last year Congress

         13  considered a proposal, H.R. 4437, also known as the

         14  Sensenbrenner- King bill after its original co-

         15  sponsor's representative, James Sensenbrenner and

         16  Peter King, which focused on draconian and punitive

         17  enforcement measures that would terrorize millions

         18  of immigrants who are working hard to provide for

         19  their families.

         20                 The historic response from millions

         21  of immigrant community members and their allies, who

         22  took to the streets to protest H.R. 4437, created

         23  the momentum necessary created the momentum

         24  necessary to defeat this proposal.  We were able to

         25  show that these measures are costly, unrealistic,
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          2  and, more importantly, they are inhumane and un-

          3  American.

          4                 This year the 110th Congress, the

          5  comprehensive immigration reform debate has once

          6  again failed.  As a result of inaction at the

          7  federal level, the Department of Homeland Security

          8  and Immigration Customs Enforcement has stepped up

          9  internal enforcement as a means to address the

         10  dysfunctional immigration system.

         11                 Internal enforcement means stepped up

         12  workplace raids, violent detainments of long time

         13  community members and ripping families apart.  Every

         14  day that passes without comprehensive immigration

         15  reform is a day when families are shattered by

         16  separation by deportations or waiting hopelessly for

         17  years on end to be reunited with their loved ones.

         18                 An increase in enforcement does not

         19  solve the problem of immigration.  As a matter of

         20  fact, an enforcement- only approach further pushes

         21  immigrants, and especially undocumented immigrants,

         22  further into the shadows of society.  It is left to

         23  immigrant serving organizations such as ourselves

         24  and our 200- plus member organizations and countless

         25  others to address the needs of families being torn
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          2  apart, workplace harassment due to perceived

          3  immigration status, civic disengagement and other

          4  immigrant concerns.

          5                 Thus, it is important for the City of

          6  New York to ensure that all New Yorkers continue to

          7  access the services that this City provides while

          8  the federal government continues to fail to enact

          9  legislation that addresses the broken immigration

         10  system. We urge the City Council to continue to fund

         11  programs that support the integration of immigrants

         12  into this great City, such as legal services for

         13  citizenship applications, adult education programs

         14  to provide English for speakers of other languages,

         15  and basic education in the native language classes

         16  for adults.

         17                 Unfortunately, this is not enough.

         18  In New York City, where over 47 percent of New

         19  Yorkers speak another language other than English at

         20  home, many obstacles remain.  Our research, advocacy

         21  and organizing has confirmed our intuition that

         22  current language access barriers result in immigrant

         23  New Yorkers being unaware of their rights and most

         24  of the time are afraid of communicating with the

         25  City to ensure the provision of essential services.
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          2  Strong policies that encourage and finance language

          3  access programs across all agencies should be

          4  considered and recommended to the Mayor by this

          5  Committee.

          6                 On behalf of the New York Immigration

          7  Coalition and its 200- plus member organizations,

          8  several of whom are here today to testify before

          9  you, I wish to thank you for this opportunity to

         10  provide this testimony.

         11                 MS. SALAZAR:  Good afternoon.  My

         12  name is Luz Tavarez- Salazar.  I am Director of

         13  Legalization and Immigration Outreach at Catholic

         14  Charities Archdiocese of New York.  I want to thank

         15  the City Council for sponsoring this hearing and

         16  allowing me to bring testimony.  I've cut down my

         17  testimony drastically.

         18                 In New York State we are one of the

         19  largest immigration legal service providers.  We

         20  help more than 2,000 individuals each year with

         21  legal advice and representation before the

         22  immigration authorities and provide information in

         23  17 languages in more than 43,000 phone calls from

         24  immigrants through the immigration hotline.

         25                 Catholic Charities offers one- stop
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          2  help to the immigrants and refugees whose needs go

          3  far beyond that of legal assistance.  Our paralegals

          4  and attorneys work closely with staff and other

          5  departments to maximize the use and availability of

          6  language, health, housing, employment, counseling,

          7  child care, job training, youth, domestic violence,

          8  mental health and other services.

          9                 The Administration's plan to step up

         10  immigration enforcement is very troubling in light

         11  of its counter- productive economic effects and

         12  punishing human cost.  Recently, Homeland Security

         13  Secretary, Michael Chertoff and Commerce Secretary,

         14  Carlos Gutierrez, unveiled a plan comprised of more

         15  than two dozen aggressive steps the Administration

         16  is taking to address worksite, border and interior

         17  enforcement.  Although the plan focuses on some

         18  policies that are already in place or in progress,

         19  it creates new mandates, including a severe

         20  crackdown on employers who hire undocumented

         21  immigrants.

         22                 This no- match letter initiative is a

         23  kind of enforcement program that yields nothing but

         24  negative consequences. As noted by the AFL- CIO,

         25  employers have historically used this SSA no- match
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          2  letter to exploit workers.  Such a rule would give

          3  them a stronger pretext for doing more of the same.

          4                 The DHS rule imposes liability on

          5  employers based on their failure to respond SSA no-

          6  match letters even though SSA errors frequently are

          7  caused by many innocent factors, such as

          8  typographical errors, name change and the use of

          9  multiple surnames. The DHS rule will threaten the

         10  jobs of U.S. Citizens and other legally authorized

         11  workers simply because of errors in the government's

         12  inaccurate Social Security earnings database. Taken

         13  together, these new changes, but particularly the

         14  Social Security no-match rule, will have a

         15  profoundly negative effect on the U.S. economy and

         16  will create social chaos across the country.

         17                 Equally troubling, however, is the

         18  increase in local action, evidenced by the approval

         19  of over 1,400 mostly anti immigrant bills and

         20  resolutions by local legislatures, the coordinated

         21  report by police chiefs on local responses to

         22  immigration, and worse, the engagement of state

         23  services to carry out immigration enforcement under

         24  INA Section 287(g).

         25                 As a result of many of these
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          2  initiatives, Catholic Charities has seen a spike in

          3  the exploitation and defrauding of immigrants.  In

          4  response, we have developed vehicles for

          5  communicating more efficiently with our parishes and

          6  affiliated agencies, over 500 in New York.  We have

          7  established a hotline for emergency immigration

          8  assistance, and we have developed outreach materials

          9  and workshops to help immigrants understand and

         10  exercise their rights.

         11                 Catholic Charities and the United

         12  States Conference of Catholic Bishops have

         13  consistently advocated that the sound and just

         14  solution to the programs of border security and

         15  human inequity is comprehensive immigrant reform

         16  legislation.  Catholic Charities supports a

         17  comprehensive immigration reform program for many

         18  reasons.

         19                 First, such a program would be good

         20  for our country. It would benefit immigrants who are

         21  already productive members of U.S. society and

         22  therefore would not result in immigrants taking jobs

         23  from those who are born in the United States.

         24  Moreover, it would elevate the wages and working

         25  conditions for all workers in all industries that
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          2  employ large numbers of migrants.

          3                 Second, such a program would promote

          4  stability and development in the home countries of

          5  undocumented immigrants by maintaining the billions

          6  of dollars in remittances they send home every year.

          7    Ultimately, stability and development in other

          8  countries will mean that fewer of their citizens

          9  will have an incentive to come to the United States

         10  to look for a better life.

         11                 Third, such a program would be humane

         12  and respectful of human dignity and fundamental

         13  human rights.  It would finally recognize the

         14  indispensable contributions undocumented immigrants

         15  long have made to the United States through their

         16  labor, their taxes, their businesses and their

         17  buying power.  It would also preserve family unity

         18  and enable U.S. born children of the undocumented to

         19  receive benefits to which they are entitled.  Thank

         20  you very much for this opportunity.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK:  Thank you very

         22  much, and I certainly want to go on the record and

         23  state, as others, that the fine work that both your

         24  organizations do in this City, and we certainly

         25  appreciate that work that you all do.  Dr. Stewart?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Well, first of

          3  all, some of these groups that really are the

          4  backbone of the immigration Committee and Council, I

          5  want to thank you for coming in today and for doing

          6  such a fine job on your testimony.  I have one

          7  question, however.

          8                 Since Homeland Security has started

          9  this new rage and now with the Social Security no-

         10  match program that has been stopped, have you seen

         11  any influx of folks coming into your office as a

         12  result of that?

         13                 MS. SALAZAR:  What we have

         14  specifically seen, we've seen immigrants coming into

         15  our office that have been defrauded, and I can

         16  attest that we've had about a dozen at least since

         17  the beginning of the year.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  When you say

         19  they have been defrauded, is it as a result of the

         20  new developments?

         21                 MS. SALAZAR:  I think the issue is

         22  that because there has been no comprehensive

         23  immigration reform, there are so many misleading

         24  issues and statements out there.  We all know the

         25  plight of the immigrant.  I mean, you're desperate
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          2  to have some type of legal status here, and that

          3  desperation leads to sometimes making not the best

          4  choices.  So sometimes they go to these, and I

          5  apologize to the attorneys in the room, but

          6  sometimes they go to these unscrupulous attorneys or

          7  immigration service providers, and they kind of fall

          8  prey to them.  So we've seen many of those cases.

          9                 MS. LEE:  And, in addition, I think

         10  that what we have been hearing is that people who

         11  have come out in support of comprehensive

         12  immigration reform, immigrants themselves, are

         13  afraid to leave their house, and they're feeling

         14  this isolation within their communities and that

         15  they are having a hard time both seeking good legal

         16  services that would be able to help them, but also

         17  that they are afraid to come out and either protest

         18  or demonstrate or also to get more news about what's

         19  going on at the federal level.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK:  Yesterday, a

         21  question that you raised as it relates to language

         22  access.  You had indicated that the City itself --

         23  What would you like the City to do that is not being

         24  done to deal with this language situation, because

         25  you're urging the Council to deal with the Mayor as
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          2  it relates to this, so can you talk a little bit

          3  about that?

          4                 MS. LEE:  Yes.  We would like to see

          5  a more comprehensive approach to how language access

          6  is being talked about both in the Council but also

          7  with the Mayor's Office.  We certainly see that

          8  there is good language access in some parts of the

          9  Administration, in particular with housing and

         10  housing complaints. We'd like to see that brought to

         11  all of the departments, so that's what we'd like the

         12  Committee to communicate to the Mayor's Office.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK:  That it should

         14  be throughout the entire Administration as it

         15  relates to all of those departments that affect

         16  people?

         17                 MS. LEE:  Yes, seeking services.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK:  Health, and --

         19  okay.  Thank you very much.

         20                 MS. LEE:  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK:  Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Before you go,

         24  on page two of the Catholic Charities testimony

         25  here, it says there are approval of over 1,400
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          2  mostly anti- immigrant bills and resolutions by

          3  local legislatures.  The Coordinated report by

          4  police chief on local response to immigrants, and

          5  worse, the engagement of state services to carry out

          6  response to immigrants.  Could you elaborate on that

          7  a little bit more?

          8                 MS. SALAZAR:  On the 287(g) program,

          9  do you mean?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Yes, I just

         11  want some examples.

         12                 MS. SALAZAR:  Well, the 287(g)

         13  program, it's part of these enforcement measures.

         14  It's already part of the immigration law.  What it

         15  is, it's a partnership between Homeland Security and

         16  the localities, so either state police or marshals

         17  or local police. With the guidance of Homeland

         18  Security, they're allowed to kind of do the work of

         19  immigration agents, of federal agents, ice agents,

         20  so it's a little scary.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  And that's in

         22  New York City also?

         23                 MS. SALAZAR:  287(g)?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Yes.

         25                 MS. SALAZAR:  Well, it's federal.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Yes, right, but

          3  you said there were areas where local police and

          4  local agencies are being following the direction of

          5  the Homeland Security.  I wanted to get some clarity

          6  on that.

          7                 MS. SALAZAR:  Well, a local

          8  enforcement agency would kind of have to like buy

          9  into it.  You know, they'd have to be in agreement.

         10  They'd have to come forth to DHS or ice, whatever

         11  you want it, they'd have to come forward and say, we

         12  want to partner with you on this.

         13                 MS. LEE:  The actual localities would

         14  have to sign an MOU entering into an agreement with

         15  DHS to collaborate.  What we have seen is that, just

         16  as across the river in New Jersey, after the

         17  horrendous New York killings, the New Jersey

         18  Attorney General has published regulations for state

         19  troopers to be able to collaborate with DHS. So it's

         20  not so far away from us, and certainly we also see

         21  that there are localities in Long Island and in

         22  upstate New York that are contemplating these kinds

         23  of MOU's.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Do you see this

         25  as something, one of those things that are really
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          2  coming in conflict with Executive Order 41?

          3                 MS. LEE:  Well, should the NYPD enter

          4  into some kind of MOU, that would be in direct

          5  opposition of Executive Order 41, yes.  I mean, we

          6  would hope that would not happen.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Well, thank

          8  you.

          9                 MS. SALAZAR:  If my memory serves me

         10  correctly, I think there are localities that have

         11  tried to partner with DHS, but I think only one has

         12  been approved as of yet.  I think it's in one of the

         13  southern states.

         14                 MS. LEE:  I think also Missouri,

         15  after the New Jersey Attorney General came through

         16  with their regulations, they also came through with

         17  similar regulations.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK:  Next we have

         20  Frances Kreimer and Berta and Maria Lara.

         21                 MS. KREIMER:  Thank you, Council

         22  Member Stewart, Council Member Seabrook and Members

         23  of the Immigration Committee and Civil Rights

         24  Committee.  My name is Frances Kreimer, and I am the

         25  Advocacy Program Fellow at New Immigrant Community
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          2  Empowerment, NICE.

          3                 Founded in 1999, NICE is a civil

          4  rights and immigrant advocacy organization working

          5  to ensure that immigrants are informed, active and

          6  influential in civic, governmental and public

          7  affairs.  In following this mission and in

          8  responding to the needs of our community, has NICE

          9  has become in rights trainings and advocacy for

         10  documented and undocumented immigrants.

         11                 Over the past years, a key component

         12  of these trainings has been workers' rights

         13  education, as many of the community members we work

         14  with currently face chronic violations of their

         15  labor rights guaranteed by local, federal and

         16  international law.

         17                 Recently, in response to concerns in

         18  the community, we have been developing workshops and

         19  trainings on responding to raids at work and at

         20  home.  Unfortunately, timing, language and status

         21  barriers made personal testimony by NICE's community

         22  members difficult today, but it is imperative for us

         23  to remember that the impacts of enforcement policies

         24  are not simply statistics and theories.  Rather,

         25  they shape the challenges of our neighbors and our
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          2  communities.

          3                 As some have addressed, concerns

          4  about the new policies are widespread.  While the

          5  various new policies we've been discussing each

          6  raise their own concerns, the general impact on

          7  undocumented immigrants and on the country as a

          8  whole is predictable.  Workers, immigrants and

          9  citizens will suffer, and the nation's immigration

         10  crisis will remain unresolved.

         11                 In talking to potentially impacted

         12  community members at rights trainings and community

         13  meetings, I have heard people express worries about

         14  further vulnerability to unscrupulous employers and

         15  about their abilities to continue supporting

         16  themselves and their families.  I have heard people

         17  express increased levels of anxiety and fear, but I

         18  have not heard anyone who has been convinced to

         19  leave this country as a result of these new

         20  policies.  The new policies will not make 13 million

         21  people disappear.  They will simply drive

         22  undocumented people further underground restricting

         23  their ability to organize, further limiting their

         24  ability to fight for their labor rights.

         25                 These communities will remain an
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          2  easily exploitable, informal labor force competing

          3  with American workers and driving down labor

          4  standards for all.

          5                 NICE is currently working on

          6  preparing documentation of ongoing and now

          7  exacerbated exploitation of undocumented workers for

          8  a New York City shadow report that is being

          9  submitted to the United Nations at the end of this

         10  year.  The U.S. is a signatory to the convention on

         11  the elimination of all forms of racial

         12  discrimination, CERD, which has been interpreted to

         13  stipulate that countries must have a legitimate and

         14  proportional aim to justify discrimination against

         15  non- citizens, regardless of status, and which

         16  further mandates the active efforts of the U.S.

         17  Government in eliminating systems that perpetuate

         18  racial discrimination.

         19                 NICE has been gathering all too

         20  available data about the large- scale labor rights

         21  violations facing domestic workers, construction

         22  workers, restaurant workers and other undocumented

         23  workers in the City.

         24                 Although the New York State

         25  Department of Labor is to be commended for its newly
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          2  formed Bureau of Immigrant Workers Rights, wage and

          3  hour violations, non- payment of wages and workplace

          4  safety violations currently remain pervasive and can

          5  all be expected to increase as new enforcement

          6  policies give more tools to employers to threaten

          7  workers, make undocumented immigrants more

          8  vulnerable to exploitation and drive them further

          9  and further to the margins of the system.

         10                 The policies will also aggravate the

         11  trepidation and skepticism that currently discourage

         12  many undocumented workers from attempting to demand

         13  their rights through the U.S. legal system.

         14                 In the context of CERD, it also

         15  becomes obvious that undocumented communities are of

         16  particular concern because of their racial

         17  composition.

         18                 In 2005, 78 percent of unauthorized

         19  people in the U.S. were Latin American, 13 percent

         20  Asian and 3 percent African. Only 6 percent of the

         21  total came from Europe or Canada.  Especially in

         22  light of the U.S. legacy of slavery, the government

         23  must be held accountable for a legally delineated

         24  social group, the vast majority of whom are people

         25  of color who face consist violations of their labor
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          2  rights, have extremely limited access to legal

          3  remedies and now will be facing further hardships

          4  due to these new policies.

          5                 We hope the Immigration and Civil

          6  Rights Committees will continue to recognize the

          7  importance of discussing pressing issues of

          8  injustice in our City and that we will have the

          9  opportunity to present the final findings of the New

         10  York City CERD shadow report at Council hearings.

         11                 We also look to the Civil Rights

         12  Committee to take leadership in passing the soon to

         13  be introduced human rights and government operation

         14  audit law, which would implement the higher

         15  standards of CERD at a local level and take a

         16  proactive approach to fighting discrimination that

         17  is perpetuated by policies like the enforcement-

         18  only immigration initiatives being discussed here.

         19  We would like to particularly thank Council Member

         20  Mealy for his support on this initiative.

         21                 In closing, we wish to reiterate our

         22  appreciation of the New York City municipal

         23  government's commitment to Executive Order 41 and

         24  hope to see the City continue to resist initiatives

         25  such as the 287(g) program.
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          2                 Lastly, we look forward to the

          3  Council continuing to take strong stands advocating

          4  the rights of all its inhabitants, providing spaces

          5  and support for the organizations who are preparing

          6  for the increased enforcement by providing resources

          7  and education to potentially impacted communities.

          8  Thank you very much.

          9                 BERTA:  My name is Berta.  I'm a

         10  street vendor from the Bronx.  I come on behalf of

         11  VAMOS UNIDOS, working for street vendor rights and

         12  ICA, Immigrant Communities in Action, an

         13  organization, a coalition of more than 12

         14  organizations fighting for immigrant rights.

         15                 I came here in 1989.  I've been

         16  vending in the streets for 14 years.  Throughout my

         17  vending history, I've been arrested multiple times

         18  due to the fact that we don't have access to

         19  licenses, permits for the carts.  On many occasions,

         20  some of our colleagues have been asked their

         21  immigration status.

         22                 What we don't want to happen here

         23  today or in the future is that as a result of other

         24  infractions where we come in contact with the police

         25  that we are asked our immigration status and
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          2  deported as a result.

          3                 We come here today to ask the

          4  protection that the City Council can give us.  As

          5  street vendors, we work for our families.  If we

          6  were to result of detention and being deported, it

          7  would cause havoc in our communities.  Many of our

          8  families will be split.  Kids, our children, some of

          9  them would have to remain here in the hands of

         10  friends and families.  It would nearly cause chaos

         11  on our communities.

         12                 We ask for help in certain areas.  We

         13  ask that there be a stop to the raids, that the no-

         14  match letters would not be implemented, that 287(g)

         15  would not be signed.  We also ask that I.D.'s be

         16  provided for undocumented folks, but not just

         17  undocumented folks, but citizens, so that they're

         18  not identified as undocumented.  But we need these

         19  I.D.'s for open bank accounts, so that we feel safe

         20  when going to the hospitals or even approaching the

         21  police.  Thank you so much for the time.

         22                 Thank you so much for this

         23  opportunity.  We are in a time that we need your

         24  help.  Thank you again for this opportunity.

         25                 MS. LARA:  Good afternoon.  My name
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          2  is Maria Lara, Fiscal Officer of the Latin American

          3  Workers Project, which is a non- profit organization

          4  who provides multiple services to the Latin American

          5  community for over 10 years.

          6                 On behalf of the Latin American

          7  Workers Project, our Executive Director, our members

          8  and organizers who work daily with immigrant

          9  workers, I would like to thank you for this

         10  opportunity.

         11                 I would like to add our protest to

         12  the testimony against this recent legislation

         13  regarding border security and immigration, which

         14  adversely affects the thousands of immigrant workers

         15  that we organize.

         16                 The members we serve are living with

         17  fear, insecurity and isolation.  They are afraid to

         18  go to work because they face the uncertainty that

         19  one day they may not return home and will not see

         20  their loved ones again.  The recent deportations of

         21  wives and husbands, mothers and fathers who have

         22  been forced to leave their children behind, has

         23  traumatized these families and endangered them.  In

         24  our communities, agencies who have worked very hard

         25  to unify and support our families do not wish to see

                                                            68

          1  IMMIGRATION AND CIVIL RIGHTS

          2  our hard work wasted as we become a City that

          3  victimizes the innocent.

          4                 This legislation and anti-

          5  immigration initiatives are having a deadly impact

          6  on civil rights in our communities. Many of our

          7  workers have experienced arrests for minor

          8  violations or nothing at all and because they lack

          9  the money, language or ability to have

         10  representation, many have been jailed and may face

         11  deportation proceedings despite how minor the

         12  violations may be.

         13                 Despite New York City's Executive

         14  Order 41, these innocent individuals are also picked

         15  up by police who focus on them because they look

         16  Hispanic or Black.  This amounts to racial

         17  profiling, which our members find themselves

         18  experiencing more and more on the streets of New

         19  York.  Vendors are also reporting an increase in

         20  cases of harassment of street vendors and others by

         21  passersby who insult them, make derogatory ethnic

         22  comments and rob them.  These police and individuals

         23  are encouraged by the recent legislation which makes

         24  any immigrant an easy target for harassment and

         25  exploitation.
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          2                 In one case, a day laborer was

          3  injured on the job. At the time he was injured the

          4  company owed him three months of pay.  When he was

          5  injured, he went to the hospital who billed him

          6  $1,500.  When he informed the contractor of the

          7  bill, the contractor refused to pay and would not

          8  make good on the three months back pay.  To add

          9  insult to injury, the contractor threatened to call

         10  immigration on the worker.  In addition, he has been

         11  unable to work because of his injury, and he now

         12  lacks the income to even pay the hospital.  Thanks

         13  to our agreement with local public hospitals, our

         14  members can now go there to get medical attention.

         15                 There has been an increase in cases

         16  of harassment and exploitation reported to us.  A

         17  summer camp hired immigrants, then forced them to

         18  work almost around the clock and refused to pay

         19  them.  When they refused to continue to work and

         20  demanded that they be provided with transportation

         21  back home, their employers refused.

         22                 In another case, immigration went to

         23  a work site in Westchester and arrested two workers

         24  because of the way that they looked.  When they

         25  could not produce papers, they were arrested.
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          2  Despite the fact that one of the workers had a

          3  pregnant wife who had no other means of support, she

          4  was not informed that her husband had been arrested

          5  until five days later.

          6                 In the Job Centers we organize, the

          7  offers for work have decreased by 50 percent.

          8                 These new initiatives far from

          9  resolving homeland security are serving as an

         10  umbrella for abusive employers to continue

         11  exploiting the workers.  They hire workers with less

         12  than the minimum wage and force them to work up to

         13  60 hours a week, no overtime payment and without the

         14  proper equipment and in deplorable conditions.

         15                 Not only are immigrant workers

         16  suffering, but this legislation and initiatives are

         17  also having an impact on small businesses who are

         18  losing money and eventually will have to close. This

         19  will lead to more joblessness in the City, and we

         20  expect the rate of unemployment to increase.

         21                 This initiative has made it possible

         22  for innocent people to be harassed and vilified.

         23                 It is to our shame that the victims

         24  of 9/11 still need to be defended.  Just yesterday

         25  we received a letter from Mr. Fortunato Lindao, who
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          2  was the first Latino clean up worker to become sick

          3  after Ground Zero.  He is presently in a detention

          4  center in Texas awaiting deportation to his native

          5  country, Ecuador.  He writes that he will be

          6  deported without money, health insurance to continue

          7  his medical regimen, or a place to live since his

          8  family is in New York City.  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK:  Thank you very

         10  much.  We've been joined by Council Member Annabel

         11  Palma from the Bronx.

         12                 Just a question as it relates to the

         13  issue of the Police Department and the involvement

         14  in the vendors.  Because we're going to be having a

         15  hearing as it relates to the stop and frisk and a

         16  number of others with the Police Department.  It is

         17  our hope that we will deal with it because the

         18  Executive Order 41 should be adhered to by the

         19  Police Department and certainly not in violation of

         20  and with those things.

         21                 I think that it's important that we

         22  again reiterate that, in light of all of this, that

         23  we should actually be assured that that is enforced

         24  so that people will not be harassed and intimidated

         25  in that manner, so it's important.  I assure you
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          2  that we will bring that up on the floor of the

          3  Council to address that issue because it's a real

          4  concern for us.

          5                 MR. SAMANEZ:  A comment on that.  My

          6  name is Rafael. I'm the Director of VAMOS UNIDOS,

          7  the organization Berta's from.

          8                 Executive Order 41 is a great thing.

          9  It's a great law.  The only thing is the ground

         10  we've seen the violation of Executive Order 41

         11  repeatedly by police departments.  The arresting and

         12  asking of status, not only vendors but the Muslim

         13  community. They've been very focused on this, so

         14  it's a real problem.  We see with 287(g) the problem

         15  is going to quadruple.  It's going to basically

         16  obliterate Executive Order 41, so we're asking, we

         17  laid out the five points in our statement there that

         18  we're asking the Council to include, but this is

         19  really strongly know to 287(g), as we're already

         20  seeing it happening across the river in New Jersey.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK:  Well, I would

         22  hope that we're going to have a joint hearing around

         23  the impact of Executive Order 41 and have the Police

         24  Department come in, so that we can address those

         25  issues and have people to come in and testify around
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          2  those issues.

          3                 MR. SAMANEZ:  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK:  Thank you all

          5  very much.  We have a couple of questions, I'm

          6  sorry.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER EUGENE:  [speaking

          8  Spanish]

          9                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Council Member,

         10  we have to translate this.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER EUGENE:  What I said,

         12  I just want to commend her and congratulate her for

         13  her courage.  She's very courageous, and she's not

         14  doing nothing wrong.  She's just trying to get

         15  opportunities for her children and her family, and I

         16  say that we are all immigrants in the United States,

         17  and we are looking for the same thing.  We are the

         18  City Council.  We are going to work very hard to

         19  make sure that the rights of the immigrant people

         20  are respected.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  Thank you, Mr.

         22  Chair.  First, I want to commend you for your

         23  testimony.  I know it is a little bit scary to come

         24  up before any committee to give these types of

         25  testimonies without thinking there will be any
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          2  repercussions towards you.

          3                 But to Maria, you mentioned

          4  throughout your testimony some employers.  Does your

          5  organization, or maybe any of the organizations that

          6  were testifying here today, have the names of these

          7  employers that continue to exploit the workers and

          8  continue not to pay them and just use them and

          9  basically abandon them?  And if you do, I know my

         10  office will be interested in obtaining that list,

         11  and I'm pretty sure the Committees will. Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK:  Thank you all

         13  very much.  We appreciate it.  Is there any others

         14  testifying?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  I want to thank

         16  all the members of the Committee who came out today

         17  and thank you for your support.  This is an issue

         18  that we have to follow up on, especially the

         19  Executive Order 41.  We would want to do some sort

         20  of a follow up hearing on that.  Also, we would want

         21  to maybe put a resolution together to address that

         22  issue as to 287(g).  We want to put a resolution

         23  together along that.  Once again, I want to thank

         24  you, and I want to thank my colleague, Larry

         25  Seabrook from the Bronx, for co-chairing this
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          2  Committee.  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK:  Thank you very

          4  much, and certainly thanks to the Speaker who's been

          5  in the forefront of this issue, as well.  This

          6  hearing is adjourned.

          7                 (Hearing concluded 3:05 p.m.)
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